
Administrative Offices 
4600 So. Weber River Drive 

Riverdale, Utah  84405 

 
 
 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Riverdale City Council held Tuesday, August 21, 2007 at 6:00 
p.m. at the Riverdale Civic Center, 4600 South Weber River Drive.      
 
Members Present: Bruce Burrows, Mayor  
   David Gibby, Councilor 
   Stacey Haws, Councilor 

Gary Griffiths, Councilor 
Shelly Jenkins, Councilor 
Doug Peterson, Councilor 

 
Others Present: Larry Hansen, Chief Administrative Officer; Steve Brooks, City Attorney; Lynn 

Moulding, Public Works Director; Dave Hansen, Police Chief; Doug Illum, Fire 
Chief; Marilyn Hansen, City Recorder; other city staff and 1 citizen. 

 
A. Welcome & Roll Call  
Mayor Burrows called the meeting to order and welcomed all those present.   
 
B.  Pledge of Allegiance 
Councilor Gibby offered the Pledge of Allegiance.  Mayor Burrows read a quote from John Adams. 
 
Gary Griffiths arrived at 6:10 p.m. 
 
C. Moment of Silence 
Mayor Burrow’s quote was followed by a Moment of Silence. 
 
D. Open Communications
None 
 
E. Presentations and Reports   
1. Presentation by Dave Hardman from Northern Utah Transportation Alliance 
Mayor Burrows reported that Dave Hardman, who is the President of the Chamber of Commerce and 
Chairman of NUTA, requested to present information concerning the upcoming ballot initiative for the 
quarter cent sales tax and isn’t sure that Mr. Hardman will make it.  Mayor Burrows stated that if Mr. 
Hardman arrives he will allow him to give his presentation when the Council discusses Resolution 2007-
33.   
 
2. Mayor’s Report 

 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 1 August 21, 2007 

Mayor Burrows reported that tomorrow evening is the “Meet the Candidates” night at the Senior Center 
from 6:30 to 8:00 p.m.  He explained that it will be an open house format.  He indicated that he will 
encourage the Youth City Council to do a question and answer format, after the primary election.  
Marilyn Hansen, City Recorder, gave an overview of the early voting schedule and primary election 
voting.  Mayor Burrows reported that Police Chief Dave Hansen gave him information that the 
individual was caught today who carried out an armed robbery at the Graywhale store.     



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 2 August 21, 2007 

 
3. Administrator’s Report 
 a. Department Information 
Larry Hansen discussed the report.   
 
Fire Chief, Doug Illum reported that he recently participated in a program, where he was flown to Fort 
Bliss to see Dean Gallegos, who is a fire fighter who has recently been deployed.  He stated that Mr. 
Gallegos will be a prison guard in Southern Iraq and doing convoy operations.  He is with the 145th 
battalion of the Utah Army National Guard.  Chief Illum reported that Mr. Gallegos can receive e-mails 
from his City e-mail account and encouraged anyone who had a desire to keep in contact with Dean to 
drop him a line via this e-mail account.  He also reported that Fire Fighter James Robinson is also being 
activated and is a member of the Air Reserve being deployed to Baghdad as an electrician to maintain 
the airport and runway for 90 days.   
 
 b. Employee Recognition 

Larry Hansen recognized the following employees whose anniversary date falls in the month of 
July.  
 

Employee Length of Service Department 
Lynette Limburg 21 Years Administration 
Dave Griggs 13 Years Fire 
Dean Gallegos 12 Years Fire 
Tracy Morning 12 Years Fire 
Allen Miller 12 Years Fire 
Norm Farrell 9 Years Public Works 
Bart Poll 9 Years Public Works 
Dennis Miller 7 Years Public Works 
Clara Johnson 3 Years Business Administration 
Mike Junk 3 Years Court 

 
 c. Staffing Authorization Plan 

Mr. Hansen discussed the report and noted that the city is still operating under authorization.   
 

4. Recorder’s Report (Review status of Council requested follow-up items) 
None  
 

F. Consent Items 
1. Approval of meeting minutes from:  

August 7, 2007 Council Work Session 
August 7, 2007 Regular City Council 
Councilor Haws stated that he believes the reference to Mr. Craig Saxby as being from Rocky 
Mountain Power is incorrect and he believes that Mr. Saxby is a contractor building the substation 
rather than an employee of Rocky Mountain Power.   
 

2. Pre-Audit Report on Condition of the Treasury for the month ending June 30, 2007. 
Lynn Fortie reported that these numbers are pre-audit and could change as the auditors finalize their 
work.  He reported that the City has been receiving the 50-50 portion of the sales tax and that during 
the month of June, they did make up that difference and we ended up receiving over the $4.5 million 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 3 August 21, 2007 

dollars.  He stated that there was an expenditure from the Streets budget of $165,324 to Advanced 
Paving for Class C Roads, around $9,000 for Old Glory Days, and that a bond payment was made 
from the RDA in the amount of $14,626.  Councilor Haws inquired if those were the only significant 
expenses if the expenses were $1.5 million and the revenues were $825,000.  Mr. Fortie replied that 
part of the expenditures was a transfer from the General Fund to Capital Projects, which is not a true 
expenditure.  Councilor Haws inquired if that transfer was reflected in the $787,000 Capital Projects 
budget.  Mr. Fortie replied that it was.  Councilor Haws inquired why there is a negative $300,000 in 
the Fiscal Year to Date Difference column.  Mr. Fortie replied that is probably has something to do 
with the transfer, but will look into that to be sure and get back with Councilor Haws.   

 
3. Set Strategic Planning meeting to be held either Tuesday, November 27, 2007 or Wednesday, 

November 28, 2007 from 6:00 to 10:00 p.m. at the Riverdale Senior Center. 
Councilor Gibby stated that he prefers holding the meeting on Tuesday, but would make himself 
available for a Wednesday meeting.  Councilor Griffiths stated that Tuesday is fine for him.   

 
Motion: Councilor Haws moved to approve consent items with the modification amendment to the 

minutes as specified, specifying November 27, 2007 as the date for the strategic planning 
meting.  Councilor Gibby seconded the motion. 

 
Call the Question  
The motion passed unanimously.  

 
G. Action Items 
1. Consideration of approval of Ordinance 689 setting a transient room tax. 

Lynn Fortie reported that Utah State law allows a City to impose a transient room tax of up to 1% 
and in order to make it effective as of January 1, 2008, the state would need to get that information 
prior to October 1, 2007.   

 
Motion: Councilor Gibby moved to approve Ordinance 689 adopting a Municipal Transient Room 

Tax within the boundaries of Riverdale City, providing a repealer, severability and an 
effective date in the amount of 1%.  Councilor Peterson seconded the motion. 

 
Councilor Haws stated that the date needed to be changed to October 1, 2007.  He discussed that the 
second paragraph of the ordinance states that the law allows us to put the revenue in the General 
Fund and not restrict its uses and asked if this was correct.  Mr. Fortie replied that Councilor Haws 
was correct.  Councilor Haws reported that the paragraph before Section 1 wasn’t clear about when 
it is going to go into effect.  Steve Brooks reported that the date changes have been made to the final 
version.  Councilor Jenkins inquired how the City would implement section 3.9 which discusses 
collecting this revenue from trailer parks, such as Leslie’s.  Mr. Fortie replied that a city can collect 
the money themselves if they want to or have the State Tax Commission collect the money for a 
small administration fee, which is what he recommends.  Larry Hansen reported that the State Tax 
Commission will notify these proprietors of the new ordinance that they have the responsibility to 
remit it.  Councilor Peterson stated that it makes sense to implement this, as the state doesn’t 
consider transients as part of our population and this is one way to recoup the money.  He stated that 
some cities have a 1.5% transient room tax and asked if anyone knew why.  Mr. Fortie stated that 
those entities have met certain bond indebtedness criteria and that Riverdale doesn’t meet those 
criteria.   
 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 4 August 21, 2007 

Call the Question  
Roll Call Vote: Councilor Gibby, Yes; Councilor Jenkins, Yes; Councilor Haws, Yes; Councilor 
Peterson, Yes; Councilor Griffiths, Yes.  The motion passed unanimously.  

 
2. Consideration of awarding bid for the 2008 Roadway Improvement Project. 

Lynn Moulding stated that this project bid includes the crack and slurry seal of the Community 
Center/Fire Department parking lots and some city streets.  Councilor Gibby inquired if Advanced 
Paving and Morgan Paving were equal in terms of performance and past history as there isn’t much 
difference in the bids.  Mr. Moulding replied that he hasn’t had a lot of experience with Morgan 
Paving, but has had experience with Advanced Paving.   

 
Motion: Councilor Gibby moved to award the bid to Advanced Paving in the amount of 

$141,020 for road projects.  Councilor Peterson seconded the motion. 
 

Call the Question  
Roll Call Vote: Councilor Jenkins, Yes; Councilor Haws, Yes; Councilor Peterson, Yes; Councilor 
Griffiths, Yes; Councilor Gibby, Yes.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

3. Consideration of Resolution 2007-33 encouraging support of a ballot measure to fund local 
transportation projects. 
Mayor Burrows reported that this resolution encourages support of the County measure regarding the 
quarter cent sales tax for transportation projects in Northern Utah.  He explained that Davis, Weber 
and Southern Box Elder counties have combined to form the Northern Utah Transportation Alliance.  
He stated that Mr. Hardman was going to be here to tonight to explain the high need for increasing 
the capacity on our roads.   Mayor Burrows reported that a similar resolution was unanimously 
passed by WACOG last week.  He reported that similar measures are being done by other 
communities throughout the County and recommends joining with them in supporting this ballot 
measure.  Councilor Gibby stated that the Mayor reported earlier that 60% of this money will go to 
corridor preservation and 40% to mass transit.  Mayor Burrows stated that this money is primarily 
for corridor preservation and roads.  Councilor Gibby reported that he is concerned that the Transit 
Authority is missing the boat as they asked for one-half % sales tax to fund transit and then their fee 
schedule is so high that citizens can’t afford to use it.  He explained that mass transit works well in 
Europe, because rider fees are low and people can afford to ride it.  He stated that he feels that the 
trains will be empty, except during commuter times.  Councilor Gibby reported that he believes in 
corridor preservation and having the money stay in our area.  Councilor Haws stated that while he 
fully supports corridor preservation and believes that they need to have more money for 
transportation projects, he disagrees with the legislature’s method of going about this.  He feels there 
is not enough money being raised for transportation and instead of raising taxes, the legislature 
allows the citizens to vote for another quarter cents sales tax.  He stated he will be opposed to it.  
Councilor Jenkins reported that she attends the NUTA meetings and that this has been a difficult 
item for her.  She understands that the amount of money that will be generated by this, is really 
minimal to the amount that will be necessary to fund our transportation needs in Northern Utah.  She 
reported that this is money that will help fund studies and create the priority for the Mayors and 
County Commissioners to help them determine where the money will go and to help get federal 
dollars.  Councilor Jenkins stated that considering another tax is a consternation but that she 
understands the need to be prepared and feels that this is proactive government and that she is in 
favor of this.  Councilor Gibby inquired if this is a permanent tax or is there a grandfathering 
provision.  Mayor Burrows stated that he thinks there is a sunset provision.  



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 5 August 21, 2007 

Councilor Peterson stated that he understands that this does benefit the County overall, but wondered 
where Riverdale’s needs fall in the list of priorities.  Mayor Burrows stated that Ritter Drive is on the 
list.  Councilor Peterson stated that Ritter Drive isn’t what he was thinking of, but he wants an east-
west corridor at the southern end of the County.  He explained that he thinks the State needs to look 
at where the growth is and put the money there.  Mayor Burrows reported that they have put the 
extension of 5600 South along the north border of HAFB to connect with the South Weber 
interchange on the map. Councilor Jenkins stated that if it were not for the fact that she felt that we 
had a voice on how these projects were prioritized, it would be difficult.  She explained that this 
initiative allows us to study and get the possibility of federal matching money and is proactive 
planning.  Larry Hansen reported that there is a possibility, if enacted and funds returned to the 
counties, that Weber County would probably generate $2.5 million per billion dollars of sales.  He 
stated that given our level of sales, this particular quarter cent tax should generate $5 to $7 million 
per year in Weber County, to be used for many things.   

 
Motion: Councilor Jenkins moved to adopt Resolution 2007-33 encouraging support of a ballot 

measure increasing the sales and use tax by one-quarter cent to fund critically-needed 
local transportation projects.  Councilor Griffiths seconded the motion. 

 
Councilor Peterson stated that he wants more information on this initiative before he casts his vote.  
He would like to see what corridors are being considered, how much money will be brought in and 
the prioritization of projects.  He reported that he thinks transportation is a use tax and should be 
funded by those who use it and while comments have swayed him, he really wants more information 
in order to support another tax.  Mayor Burrows reported that this information is available on-line 
and through NUTA.   

 
Motion: Councilor Peterson made a substitute motion to defer this item to the next Council 

meeting.   
 

Mayor Burrows stated that a number of communities have already passed this resolution and it won’t 
stop anything.  He explained that they can make sure that NUTA is here at the next meeting or get 
additional information in the mean time.  Mr. Hansen reported that in the material that Mr. Hardman 
submitted, it stated that the money will be used for corridor preservation and that the law provides 
that the local entities can determine how those funds are used.  

 
The substitute motion died for lack of a second. 

 
Call the Question  
Roll Call Vote: Councilor Haws, No; Councilor Peterson, No; Councilor Griffiths, Yes; Councilor 
Gibby, Yes; Councilor Griffiths, Yes.  The motion passed with three in favor and two opposed. 
 
 

H. Discretionary Items 
Councilor Jenkins expressed her concerns that the sidewalk ends at the roundabouts on 4400 South.  She 
noted that children are darting in there and trying to merge into traffic.  She asked what are their options 
to manage that.  Lynn Moulding replied that they can wait until UDOT puts in a new bridge structure or 
the City can accept all responsibility and liability to the bridge structure to cut the embankments to put 
in a sidewalk.   
 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 6 August 21, 2007 

I. Adjournment 
With no further business to come before the Council at this time, Councilor Haws moved to adjourn the 
meeting.  Councilor Gibby seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  The meeting 
adjourned at approximately 7:27 p.m. 
 
Attest:       Approved:    September 4, 2007 
 
 
_____________________________                          _________________________________ 
Marilyn Hansen, City Recorder   Bruce Burrows, Mayor  

 


	B.  Pledge of Allegiance
	C. Moment of Silence
	D. Open Communications
	E. Presentations and Reports  

